
HEARING TO BE CONDUCTED UNDER THE TERMS OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 
 

 
 
 

 
City of Westminster 
 

  
 

Committee Agenda 
 

Title: 
 

 Licensing Sub-Committee (3) 

   

Meeting Date: 
 

 Thursday 23 February 2023 

   

Time: 
 

 10.00 am 

   

Venue: 
 

 Rooms 18.01 - 18.03 - 18th Floor, 64 Victoria Street, London, 
SW1E 6QP 

   

Members:  Councillors: 
  Robert Eagleton (Chair) 

Concia Albert 
Melvyn Caplan 

    
 Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting and 

listen to the discussion Part 1 of the Agenda.  
 
Admission to the public gallery is via a visitor’s pass which is 
available from the main ground floor reception at 64 Victoria 
Street from 9.30am.  
 
If you have a disability and require any special assistance, please 
contact the Committee Officer (details listed below) in advance of 
the meeting.  
 
An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for anyone wearing 
a hearing aid or using a transmitter. 
 
If you require further information, please contact the Committee 
Officer, Sarah Craddock, Committee and Councillor Co-ordinator. 
 
Email: scraddock@westminster.gov.uk Tel: 0779098018 
Corporate Website: www.westminster.gov.uk 

 
 

http://www.westminster.gov.uk/


 

 

Note for Members: Members are reminded that officer contacts are shown at the end of 
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.  
Regarding Item 2, guidance on Declarations of Interests is included in the Code of 
Governance. If Members and Officers have any questions, they should contact the 
Director of Law before the meeting please. 
AGENDA 
 
PART 1 (IN PUBLIC)  
 
1.   MEMBERSHIP  

 To report any changes to the membership. 
 

 
 
2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To receive declarations by Members and Officers of the 
existence and nature of any pecuniary interests or any other 
significant interest in matters on this agenda. 
 

 

 
 Licensing Applications for Determination 

 
 

 
1.   BASEMENT AND GROUND FLOOR, 52 QUEENSWAY,         

W2 3RY 
(Pages 1 - 22) 

 Ward 
CIA* 
SCZ** 

Site Name & 
Address 

Application 
Type 

Licensing 
Reference No. 

Lancaster 
Gate 
  
* None 
  
** None 
  

Basement and 
Ground Floor 
52 Queensway 
W2 3RY 

New Premises 
Licence 

22/11938/LIPN 

*Cumulative Impact Area 
** Special Consideration Zone 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 
 

 

3

2.   WOK AND FIRE, 33 HAYMARKET, SW1Y 4HA (Pages 23 - 46) 

 Ward 
CIA* 
SCZ** 

Site Name & 
Address 

Application 
Type 

Licensing 
Reference No. 

St James’s 
  
* West End 
  
** None 
  

Wok and Fire 
33 Haymarket 
SW1Y 4HA 
  

New Premises 
Licence 

22/11862/LIPN 

*Cumulative Impact Area 
** Special Consideration Zone 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

3.   SIMMONS, 11 WOODSTOCK STREET, W1C 2AE (Pages 47 - 
116) 

 Ward 
CIA* 
SCZ** 

Site Name & 
Address 

Application 
Type 

Licensing 
Reference No. 

West 
End 
  
* None 
  
** 

Simmons 
11 Woodstock 
Street 
W1C 2AE 
  

Premises 
Licence Review 

22/11955/LIREVP 

*Cumulative Impact Area 
** Special Consideration Zone: N/A 

  
 

 

 
Stuart Love  
Chief Executive 
15 February 2023 
 
 



 
 

 

4

In considering applications for Premises Licences under the Licensing Act 2003, the Sub 
Committee is advised of the following: 

Policy Considerations 
The Licensing Sub-Committee is required to have regard to the City of Westminster 
statement of Licensing Policy, effective from January 2021. 

Guidance Considerations 
The Licensing Sub-Committee is required to have regard to any guidance issued by the 
Secretary of State under Section 182 the Licensing Act 2003.  The most recent version 
was published in April 2018. 

Core hours When Customers Are Permitted to Be on The Premises  
Core hours, as set out in the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 2021, are when 
customers are permitted to be on the Premises. The maximum opening hours permitted 
will not exceed the start time and terminal hour for each of the days where licensable 
activity is permitted.  
Note: The core hours are for all licensable activities but if an application includes Late 
Night Refreshment, then the starting time for that licensable activity will be 11.00 pm. 

1. Casinos  
Up to 24 hours a day whilst Casino Gaming is permitted by a Premises Licence under 
the Gambling Act 2005.  

2. Cinemas, Cultural Venues and Live Sporting Premises 
Monday to Sunday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 

3. Hotels 
Monday to Thursday:  09:00 hours to 23:30 hours 
Friday and Saturday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours  
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 
Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday: 09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sale of alcohol to guests for 
consumption in hotel/guest rooms only: Anytime up to 24 hours 

4. Off licences 
Monday to Saturday:  08:00 hours to 23:00 hours 
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 

5. Outdoor Spaces 
Monday to Thursday:  09:00 hours to 23:30 hours 
Friday and Saturday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 
Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday: 09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 

6. Pubs and bars, Fast Food and Music and Dance venues  
Monday to Thursday:  10:00 hours to 23:30 hours 
Friday and Saturday: 10:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sunday:  12:00 hours to 22:30 hours 



 
 

 

5

Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday: 12:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
7. Qualifying Clubs  

Monday to Thursday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Friday and Saturday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 
Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday: 09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 

8. Restaurants 
Monday to Thursday:  09:00 hours to 23:30 hours 
Friday and Saturday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 
Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday: 09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 

9. Sexual Entertainment Venues and Sex Cinemas 
Monday to Thursday:  09:00 hours to 23:30 hours 
Friday and Saturday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 
Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



page 1

Agenda Item 1.



1. Application 

1-A Applicant and premises 

Application Type: New Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003 

Application received date: 15 December 2022 

Applicant: Mr Subramaniam Kamalanathan 

Premises address: Basement And Ground Ward: Lancaster Gate 
Floor 
52 Queensway Cumulative None 
London Impact Area: 
W2 3RY Special Queen sway 

Consideration and Bayswater 
Zone: 

Premises description: According to the application form the premises intend to 
operate as a local convenience store which serves both local 
residents and tourists. It will provide services such as Oyster 
Top Up, Payzone, ATM and the purchase of groceries. 

Premises licence history: This is a new premises licence application and no premises 
history exists 

Applicant submissions: The applicant has previously operated at 10 Queensway and is 
now looking to move to 52 Queensway. 

Applicant amendments: None 

1-B I Proposed licensable activities and hours 

Sale by retail of alcohol On or off sales or both: I Off 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 

Start: 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 
End: 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 22:30 

Seasonal variations/ Non- I None 
standard timings: 

Hours premises are open to the public 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 

Start: 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 
End: 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non- None 
standard timings: 

Adult Entertainment: None 

page 2



page 3



page 4



page 5



page 6



page 7



of time before customers are required to leave the premises. 
13. The council, acting as the Licensing Authority, may reduce hours 
if, after review, it is necessary to impose conditions specifying 
shorter hours in order to promote the licensing objectives. 
14. Specific days for non-standard hours should be identified and 
justified as part of the application to allow responsible authorities 
and interested parties to evaluate the impact that these licensable 
activities may have, and to plan accordingly. The consideration of 
applications for later hours for Bank Holiday Mondays will take into 
account that later hours are generally granted for preceding 
Sundays and that the next day is a working day. Non-specific days 
are expected to be covered by Temporary Event Notices or variation 
applications. 
C. For the purpose of Clauses A and B above, the Core Hours for 
applications for each premises use type as defined within this policy 
are: 
10a. Shops (all licensable activities that are provided as ancillary to 
the primary use of the premises as a shop except the off sale of 
alcohol)  
Monday to Thursday: 9am to 11.30pm.  
Friday and Saturday: 9am to Midnight.  
Sunday: 9am to 10.30pm. Sundays immediately prior to a bank 
holiday: 9am to Midnight.  
10b. Shops (off-sales of alcohol where it forms either the ancillary or 
primary use of the premises) Monday to Saturday: 8am to 11pm. 
Sunday: 9am to 10.30pm.  
D. Core hours are when customers are permitted to be on the 
premises and therefore the maximum opening hours permitted will 
be to the same start and terminal hours for each of the days where 
licensable activity is permitted 

Policy SHP1 applies A. Applications for a shop outside the West End Cumulative Impact 
Zone will generally be granted subject to:  
1. The application meeting the requirements of policies CD1, PS1, 
PN1 and CH1.  
2. The hours for licensable activities are within the council’s Core 
Hours Policy HRS1.  
3. The operation of any delivery services for alcohol meeting the 
council’s Ancillary Alcohol and/or Latenight Refreshment Delivery 
Service Policy DEL1.  
4. The applicant having taken account of the Special Consideration 
Zone Policy SCZ1 if the premises are located within a designated 
zone.  
5. The application and operation of the venue meeting the definition 
of a shop in Clause C. 
C. For the purposes of this policy:  
1. A shop is defined as a stall, vehicle, vessel, temporary structure, 
building or part of a stall, vehicle, vessel, temporary structure or 
building where the primary activity is the sale of goods or services to 
customers upon payment.  
2. The licensable activities for the sale of alcohol for consumption on 
the premises, regulated entertainment and/or late night refreshment 
must be ancillary to the primary use of the premises as a shop.  
3. The licensable activity of the sale of alcohol for consumption off 
the premises must be an ancillary function to the primary use of the 
premises unless that primary use is to sell alcohol for consumption 
off the premises, e.g. a traditional off licence. 

 

page 8



page 9



page 10



Premises Plans           Appendix 1 

 
 

 

page 11



page 12



page 13



 
Premises History         Appendix 3 

 
 

There is no licence or appeal history for the premises.

page 14



 

 
Appendix 4 

 
CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant 
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or 
proposed as necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority 
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing 
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and 
have not necessarily been agreed 
 
Mandatory Conditions 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in 

respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not 

hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds a 

personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age 

verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of 
alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that 

the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification 
policy. 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 

years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, 

before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and 

either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
5(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the 

premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
5(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 5(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979; 
 

(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 
 

page 15



P = D+(DxV) 
 

Where - 
  

(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty     were 

charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the 

value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol; 
 

(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a 
premises licence - 

   
(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    alcohol under 

such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a 
club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a 
capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added 

Tax Act 1994. 
 
5(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 5(ii)(b) above would (apart from this paragraph) 

not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the 
price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny. 

 
5(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 5(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph 

5(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the 
next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of 
alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the 
second day. 

 
Conditions consistent with the operating schedule 
 
None 
 
Conditions proposed by Environmental Health and agreed by the applicant so as 
to form part of the operating schedule 
 
6. No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, shall 

emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the 
premises which gives rise to a nuisance 

 
7. All tills shall automatically prompt staff to ask for age verification identification when 

presented with an alcohol sale 
 

8. There shall be no self-selection of spirits on the premises, save for spirit mixtures less 
than 5.5% ABV 

 
9. No more than 15% of the sales area shall be used at any one time for the sale, exposure 

for sale, or display of alcohol 
 
10. All sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall be in sealed containers only 

 

page 16



11. Notices shall be prominently displayed at any area used for smoking requesting patrons 
to respect the needs of local residents and use the area quietly 

 
12. All waste shall be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than 30 

minutes before the scheduled collection times 
 
13. All windows and external doors shall be kept closed after 21:00 hours except for the 

immediate access and egress of persons 
 

14. During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure sufficient 
measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or accumulating from 
customers in the area immediately outside the premises, and that this area shall be 
swept and or washed, and litter and sweepings collected and stored in accordance with 
the approved refuse storage arrangements by close of business 

 
15. No deliveries to the premises shall take place between 23.00 and 08.00 hours on the 

following day 
 

16. No licensable activities shall take place at the premises until the premises has been 
assessed as satisfactory by the Environmental Health Consultation Team at which time 
this condition shall be removed from the Licence by the licensing authority 

 
Conditions proposed by the Police and agreed by the applicant so as to form part of the 
operating schedule 
 
17. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an 

authorised officer of the City Council or the Police. It must be completed within 24 hours 
of the incident and will record the following:  
(a) all crimes reported to the venue  
(b) all ejections of patrons  
(c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder  
(d) any incidents of disorder  
(e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons  
(f) any faults in the CCTV system, searching equipment or scanning equipment  
(g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol  
(h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 

 
18. (a) The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the 

minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team.  
(b) All entry and exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every  
person entering in any light condition.  
(c) The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for licensab le 
activities and during all times when customers remain on the premises and will include 
the external area immediately outside the premises entrance.  
(d) All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time 
stamping. 
(e) Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of 
Police or authorised officer throughout the entire 31-day period.  

  
19. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV 

system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff 
member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent 
CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested. 

 
20. There shall be a personal licence holder on duty on the premises at all times when the 

premises are authorised to sell alcohol. 
 

page 17



21. A Challenge 21 or Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises 
where the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic 
identification  cards, such as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the 
PASS Hologram. 

 
Conditions proposed by Interested Party and agreed by the applicant so as to form part f 
the operating schedule 
 
22. A personal licence holder shall be on the premises during the hours permitted to supply 

alcohol.  
 
23. All sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall be in sealed containers only, 

and shall not be consumed on the premises.  
 

24. Prominent signage indicating the permitted hours for the sale of alcohol shall be 
displayed so as to be visible before entering the premises, where alcohol is on public 
display, and at the point of sale. 

 
25. Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect the 

needs of local residents and leave the area quietly.  
 
26. During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure sufficient 

measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or accumulating from 
customers in the area immediately outside the premises, and that this area shall be 
swept and or washed, and litter and sweepings collected and stored in accordance with 
the approved refuse storage arrangements by close of business.  

 
27. No rubbish, including bottles, shall be removed or placed in outside areas between 2300 

hours and 0800 hours.  
 
28. Outside of the hours authorised for the sale of alcohol within the trading area is to be 

secured behind locked grills/screens or secured behind locked cabinet doors.  
 
29. No super-strength beer, lagers or ciders of 5.5% ABV (alcohol by volume) or above shall 

be sold at the premises save for premium beer or ciders in glass bottles.  
 
30. No self-service of spirits except for spirit mixers not above 5.5% ABV.  

 
31. On the Sunday and Monday of the Notting Hill Carnival:  
 

• There shall be no sale of alcohol in glass vessels from the premises;  

• There will be no external advertisement of alcohol promotions at the premises; 
and  

• There shall be no sale of alcohol from the premises after 2000 hours.  
 
32. No miniature bottles of spirits of 20cl or below shall be sold at the premises. 

 
 

 

 

page 18



Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity     Appendix 5 
 
 
 

 
 
Resident count: 325 
 

 
Licensed premises within 75m of 52 Queensway, London, W2 

 

Licence Number Trading Name Address Premises Type Time Period 

22/07833/LIPN S Mart 

20 
Queensway 
London W2 
3RX Shop 

Monday; 08:00 
- 00:00 | 
Tuesday; 
08:00 - 00:00 | 
Wednesday; 
08:00 - 00:00 | 
Thursday; 
08:00 - 00:00 | 
Friday; 08:00 - 
00:00 | 
Saturday; 

page 19



08:00 - 00:00 | 
Sunday; 08:00 
- 00:00 

21/04894/LIPDPS Not Recorded 

18 - 20 
Queensway 
London W2 
3RX Cafe 

Sunday; 07:00 
- 23:00 | 
Monday to 
Saturday; 
07:00 - 23:30 

06/10112/WCCMAP 
Mandarin 
Kitchen 

14-16 
Queensway 
London W2 
3RX Restaurant 

Sunday; 12:00 
- 00:00 | 
Monday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 00:30 

21/04671/LIPDPS 
Queens Ice 
Bowl 

Queens Ice 
Club 17 
Queensway 
London W2 
4QP Ice rink 

Monday; 09:00 
- 23:30 | 
Tuesday; 
09:00 - 23:30 | 
Wednesday; 
09:00 - 23:30 | 
Thursday; 
09:00 - 23:30 | 
Friday; 09:00 - 
00:00 | 
Saturday; 
09:00 - 00:00 | 
Sunday; 09:00 
- 23:00 

13/08953/LIPT 

Royal China 
Chinese 
Restaurant 

13 
Queensway 
London W2 
4QJ Restaurant 

Sunday; 12:00 
- 00:00 | 
Monday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 00:30 

18/07658/LIPN Urban Baristas 

Ground Floor 
11 
Queensway 
London W2 
4QJ Not Recorded 

Sunday; 07:00 
- 23:00 | 
Monday to 
Saturday; 
07:00 - 23:30 

18/08878/LIPT Del Casa 

27 
Queensway 
London W2 
4QJ Restaurant 

Sunday; 12:00 
- 00:00 | 
Monday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 00:30 

21/07343/LIPN Ceru 

11 
Queensway 
London W2 
4QJ Restaurant 

Sunday; 09:00 
- 22:00 | 
Monday to 
Thursday; 
09:00 - 23:30 | 
Friday to 
Saturday; 
09:00 - 00:00 

19/15603/LIPT 
Food Basics 
Limited 

28 
Queensway 
London W2 
3RX Restaurant 

Sunday; 10:00 
- 22:30 | 
Monday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 23:00 

page 20



21/11895/LIPDPS Grand Royale 

1-9 Inverness 
Terrace 
London W2 
3LD 

Hotel, 4+ star or 
major chain 

Sunday; 10:00 
- 00:00 | 
Monday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 00:30 

15/04940/LIPRW 

Aubaine Hilton 
London Hyde 
Park Hotel 

129 
Bayswater 
Road London 
W2 4RJ Restaurant 

Sunday; 07:00 
- 23:00 | 
Monday to 
Saturday; 
07:00 - 23:30 

06/09836/WCCMAP 
New Fortune 
Cookie 

1 Queensway 
London W2 
4QJ Restaurant 

Sunday; 12:00 
- 00:00 | 
Monday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 00:30 

17/01793/LIPDPS 

Hilton London 
Hyde Park 
Hotel 

129 
Bayswater 
Road London 
W2 4RJ 

Hotel, 4+ star or 
major chain 

Monday to 
Sunday; 00:00 
- 00:00 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



            

 City of Westminster 

 

 
Item No:   

 

   

Date:  23 February 2023 

   

Licensing Ref No:  22/11862/LIPN - New Premises Licence 

   

Title of Report:  Wok And Fire 
33 Haymarket 
London 
SW1Y 4HA 

   

Report of:  Director of Public Protection and Licensing 

   

Wards involved:  St James's 

   

Policy context:  City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy  
 

   

Financial summary:  None 

   

Report Author:  Angela Lynch 
Senior Licensing Officer 

   

Contact details  Telephone: 0207 641 6500 
Email: aseaward@westminster.gov.uk 

 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
Report 

page 23

Agenda Item 2.



 
1. Application 

 

1-A Applicant and premises 
 

Application Type: New Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003 
 

Application received date: 12 December 2022 

Applicant: WF Piccadilly Ltd 

Premises: Wok And Fire 

Premises address: 33 Haymarket 
London 
SW1Y 4HA 
 

Ward: 
 

St James’s 

Cumulative 
Impact Zone: 

West End 

 Special 
Consideration 
Zone: 

None 

Premises description: 
 

The premises intends to be a noodle restaurant and takeaway. 

Premises licence history: 
 

This is a new premises application and therefore no Premises 
Licence history exists. However, the premises has had the 
benefit of Temporary Event Notices which can be found at 
appendix 3. 

Applicant submissions: None 

Applicant amendments: None 

 

1-B Proposed licensable activities and hours 
 

Late Night Refreshment: Indoors, outdoors or both Both 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 

End: 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

None 

 

Hours premises are open to the public 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 11:00 11:00 11:00 11:00 11:00 11:00 12:00 

End: 01:30 01:30 01:30 01:30 01:30 01:30 01:30 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

None 

  

page 24



 
2. Representations 

 

2-A Responsible Authorities 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Licensing Authority 

Representative:  Kevin Jackaman 

Received:  
 

5th January 2023 

I write in relation to the application submitted for a new premises licence for 33 Haymarket, 
London, SW1. 
 
As a responsible authority under section 13 (4) of the Licensing Act 2003 as amended under the 
Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011, the Licensing Authority have considered your 
application in full. The Licensing Authority has concerns in relation to this application and how 
the premises would promote the four Licensing Objectives:  
 

• Public Nuisance 

• Prevention of Crime & Disorder 

• Public Safety 

• Protection of children from harm 
 
The application seeks the following:  
 
Late Night Refreshment 
Monday to Sunday 23:00 to 01:00 
 
Opening Hours to Public 
Monday to Saturday 11:00 to 01:30 
Sunday 12:00 to 01:30 

 
The premises is located within the West End Cumulative Impact Area and as such various 
policy points must be considered, namely CIP1, HRS1 and FFP1.  
 
At present, the operating hours applied for Late Night refreshment currently fall outside of 
Westminster’s core hours under Policy HRS1. The Licensing Authority encourage that the 
applicant reduces the hours to be within Westminster’s Core hours.   
 
6. Pubs and bars, Fast Food and Music and Dance venues 
Monday to Thursday: 10am to 11.30pm. 
Friday and Saturday: 10am to Midnight. 
Sunday: Midday to 10.30pm. 
Sundays immediately prior to a bank holiday: Midday to Midnight. 
 
The Licensing Authority note that the applicant has proposed that the operation of the premises 
will be a noodle restaurant and takeaway. Due to the nature of the premises this application falls 
within Westminster’s FFP1 (b, c, d) Policy that states. 
 
B. It is the Licensing Authority’s policy to refuse applications within the West End Cumulative 
Impact Zone other than: 
1. Applications to vary the existing licence hours within the council’s Core Hours Policy HRS1, 
and/or, 
2. Applications that seek to vary the existing licence so as to reduce the overall capacity of the 
premises. 
C. The applications referred to in Clause B1 and B2 will generally be granted subject to: 
1. The application meeting the requirements of policies CD1, PS1, PN1 and CH1. 

page 25



2. The operation of any delivery services for alcohol and/or late night refreshment meeting the 
council’s Ancillary Delivery of Alcohol and/or Late-Night Refreshment Policy DEL1. 
3. The application and operation of the venue continuing to meet the definition of a Fast Food 
Premises in Clause D. 
D. For the purposes of this policy a Fast Food Premises is defined as: 
1. A premises that provides late night refreshment, either by way of fast food over a counter, via 
a self-seating basis or take away for immediate consumption. 
2. Food and drink are: 
a. Available on the premises for self-selection. 
b. Prepared on the premises. 
c. Cooked or produced off the premises but brought to that premises in advance of its sale to 
customers. 
3. The food and drink are provided in pre-sealed or open disposable  
packaging which is intended for immediate consumption. 
4. A fast-food premises can provide a delivery service as part of its operation, however that 
service must be ancillary to the main function of the premises as defined within sub-clauses D,1 
to D,3 above.  
 
The Licensing Authority would like further submissions from the applicant to the questions 
below; 

1. How is are the premises proposing to operate. Will it be predominantly a take away 
operation? 

2. Will there be any delivery service? 
 
Subject to any response received, from the applicant the Licensing Authority may reconsider the 
application under other policies such as the Council’s restaurant policy RTTN1 
 
The Licensing Authority has concerns regarding this application and encourages the applicant 
to provide further submissions on how the premises will be operated and controlled to have no 
adverse impact on the cumulative impact area. 
 
Paragraph F56 states; Fast food premises which are open after 11pm can attract large groups 
of customers, many of whom have been consuming alcohol in pubs, bars, or night clubs 
sometimes some distance away. The congregation of people around these premises leads to 
additional noise and disturbance and further congestion in the area. Although premises which 
serve cold food and drink are not subject to licensing and may stay open all night, they are not 
so attractive to people who have been drinking as those providing hot food and drink. The 
council considers that the addition of hot fast food and hot drink adds to the attractiveness of 
premises to people who have been drinking and who are more likely to be involved in anti-social 
behaviour. 
 
Paragraph F59 goes on to say. Applications within the West End Cumulative Impact Zone, 
where there is a presumption to refuse under this policy will be expected to demonstrate why 
their application should be permitted as an exception to this policy. 
 
The Licensing Authority encourages the applicant to provide further submissions as to how the 
premises will not add to cumulative impact in the West End cumulative impact area, in 
accordance with policy CIP1.  
 
Therefore, it is a decision for the Licensing Sub-Committee to determine whether the applicant 
has demonstrated any exceptional circumstances that would allow to depart from policy. 
 
Please accept this as a formal representation.  

page 26



 
Responsible 
Authority: 

Environmental Health Service 

Representative: Sally Fabbricatore 
 

Received: 
 

6th January 2023 

I refer to the application for a new Premises Licence for the above premises.  The premises is 
situated in the West End Cumulative Impact Zone.   
  
This representation is based on the Operating Schedule and the submitted plans, for the ground 
floor (drawing number 003) and the basement (004) both dated March 2022.   
 
The applicant is seeking the following on the ground floor, to allow Late Night Refreshment 
both ‘indoors’ and ‘outdoors’ Monday to Sunday 23:00-01:00 hours. 
 
I wish to make the following representation in relation to the above application, the provision of 
and proposed hours for Late Night Refreshment may cause an increase in Public Nuisance in 
the cumulative impact zone and may impact on Public Safety.   
 
Further information has been provided, which is being considered, but further conditions may be 
proposed by Environmental Health in order to protect the Licensing Objectives. Clarification is 
also sought regarding the WC provisions for customers, it appears the only facilities are 
accessed through the kitchen.  

  
The granting of the Premises Licence as presented would have the likely effect of 
causing an increase in Public Nuisance in the cumulative impact zone and may impact 
on Public Safety. 
 
Should you wish to discuss the matter further please do not hesitate to contact me.  
 
A copy of the conditions proposed by the Environmental Health Service can be found at 
appendix 4.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

   

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 27



 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Metropolitan Police Service 

Representative: PC Dave Morgan 
 

Received: 
 

5th January 2023 

With reference to the above, I am writing to inform you that the Metropolitan Police Service as a 
Responsible Authority are objecting to this application on the basis that if granted, it would 
undermine the Licensing Objectives, namely The Prevention of Crime and Disorder. 
 
The applicant has applied for Late Night Refreshment for: 
 
Monday to Sunday: 2300 – 0100 hours 
 
The hours sought are beyond those of Westminster Council’s Core Hours policy and as per the 
policy, fast food premises that open beyond 11pm can attract large crowds of people, some of 
whom may be intoxicated.  
 
The venue is also situated within the West End Cumulative Impact Zone and as such, the Police 
have concerns that the hours sought for Late Night Refreshment may lead to an increase in 
crime and anti-social behaviour in an already very demanding area. 
 
I would therefore encourage the applicant consider a reduction in the hours sought or to submit 
further submissions showing that the venue will not add to the cumulative impact in the area. 
 
Further submissions received from the Metropolitan Police Service on 24 January 2023. 
 
With regards to the above application, the Metropolitan Police Service would like to further 
submit the following information.  
As per my initial representation, the Metropolitan Police Service are concerned that this 
premises will become a focal point for late night revellers who may have been consuming 
alcohol.  
As identified in the Westminster Councils Licensing Policy, FFP1, Fast Food premises that open 
beyond 11pm, can attract large groups of customers, many of whom have been consuming 
alcohol in pubs, bars, or night clubs sometimes some distance away.  
This in turn can cause a large build-up of people, both inside and outside the premises, a 
majority of which may be in different states of intoxication. This can then lead to a rise in 
assaults, thefts, Robberies and Anti-Social Behaviour which will be a further drain on Police and 
Emergency Services resources.  
This specific venue is situated within the heart of the Cumulative Impact Zone and is situated in 
an area where the Police have already observed an increase level of Crime and Anti-Social 
behaviour as illustrated below.  
Current levels of crime within the West End  
 
Assaults  
The levels of crime and within the West End now exceeds the figures proceeding the COVID-19 
pandemic. These levels also far exceed those within other areas of the City of Westminster.  
 
Table 1 below demonstrates the levels of violence against the person across the entire borough 
in the month of December 2022. The hotspot is centred over Leicester Square and the 
immediate environs where this venue is situated.  

page 28



 
 
Table 2 below focuses on the ‘West End’ and demonstrates in more detail the location and 
distribution of violent offences in December 2022. Again, it can be seen that the majority of 
offences take place in and around Leicester Square including the Haymarket. For December 
there were 498 offences, this is an increase of 9.93% compared to last year's 453 offences and 
an increase of 6.64% compared to November's 467 offences. Over previous rolling 12 months 
there were 5,336 offences, this is an increase of 34.07% compared to last year's 3,980 
offences. It should be noted that the peak times of these offences are between 00:00 and 05:00 
hours when this venue wishes to remain open for Late Night Refreshments.  

 
 
Robbery  
Table 3 below demonstrates the levels of robbery offences across the entire borough in the 
month of December 2022. As you can see, the significant majority of offences take place within 
the West End.  
 

page 29



 
 
Table 4 below shows the levels of robbery within the West End during December 2022. This 
can be compared with Table 3 above, which show the robberies across the borough as a 
whole. Once again, the ‘hotspot’ is centred in Leicester Square and the immediate area. The 
figures show that there were 222 reported robberies within the West End. This is an increase of 
22.65% compared to last year's 181 offences and an increase of 4.72% compared to 
November's 212 offences. Over previous rolling 12 months there were 1,989 offences, this is an 
increase of 54.07% compared to last year's 1,291 offences. The peak times for these offences 
are 01:00 to 05:00.  

 
 
The Metropolitan Police Service are therefore concerned that another fast-food venue in this 
area which is permitted to stay open beyond core hours will attract and retain people in an 
already busy area and will reduce the levels of dispersal within the Cumulative Impact Area.  
It is for these reasons that the Metropolitan Police Service have objected to this application.  
However, should the committee be minded to grant the application, we would seek to amend 
some of the conditions that the applicant has already submitted and include new conditions as 
follows:  

page 30



 
Applicant Conditions already submitted  
1.Notices shall be prominently displayed at each exit from the premises asking patrons to be 
considerate to neighbours when leaving - Accepted  
 
2. CCTV will be operational at all times while the premises remain open to the public and all 
images captured be recorded and stored on site for a minimum period of 31 days. Copies of 
CCTV recordings will be made available to the Police and/or the Licensing Authority on 
reasonable request.  
Replace with MC01:  
• The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the minimum 
requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit points will be 
covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light condition. The CCTV 
system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for licensable activities and during all 
times when customers remain on the premises and will include the external area immediately 
outside the premises entrance. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days 
with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon 
the request of Police or authorised officer throughout the entire 31-day period.  
 
3. At least one member of staff on duty whilst the licence is being used shall be trained in the 
requirements of the Licensing Act in terms of the licensing objectives, offences committed under 
the Act and conditions of the Premises Licence. - Accepted  
 
4. Policies and procedures shall be put in place for the collection of street litter generated by the 
premises and such policies shall be implemented by staff whenever the premises are being 
used under the terms of this licence. - Accepted  
 
 
5. An incident book will be maintained by the premises that details incidents of note that occur in 
the premises. This shall include crimes, items seized, defects in the CCTV system, refused 
admission, disorder and ejection as a minimum. The incident book shall be kept on the 
premises and be available for inspection at all times the premises is open.  
Replace with MC49  
• An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an authorised 
officer of the City Council or the Police. It must be completed within 24 hours of the incident and 
will record the following:  
 
(a) all crimes reported to the venue  
(b) all ejections of patrons  
(c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder  
(d) any incidents of disorder  
(e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons  
(f) any faults in the CCTV system, searching equipment or scanning equipment  
(g) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.  
6. From 9pm whenever the venue is operational on Fridays and Saturdays there will be 1 
licensed door supervisor on duty on the premises. They will correctly display their SIA licence 
which will be visible whilst on duty. - Accepted  
 
Also include the addition of MC02:  
1. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system 
shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff member must be 
able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent CCTV images or data with 
the absolute minimum of delay when requested.  
 
A copy of the conditions proposed by the Metropolitan Police Service can be found at 
appendix 4.  

page 31



 
3. Policy & Guidance 

 

The following policies within the City Of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy apply: 
 

Policy CIP1 applies 

 

It is the Licensing Authority’s policy to refuse applications within the 
West End Cumulative Impact Zone for: pubs and bars, fast food 
premises, and music and dancing and similar entertainment, other 
than applications to:  
1. Vary the hours within Core Hours under Policy HRS1, and/or  
2. Vary the licence to reduce the overall capacity of the premises.  
C. Applications for other premises types within the West End 
Cumulative Impact Zones will be subject to other policies within this 
statement and must demonstrate that they will not add to cumulative 
impact.  
D. For the purposes of this policy the premises types referred to in 
Clause A are defined within the relevant premises use policies within 
this statement 

Policy HRS1 applies A. Applications within the core hours set out below in this policy will 
generally be granted for the relevant premises uses, subject to not 
being contrary to other policies in the Statement of Licensing Policy. 
B. Applications for hours outside the core hours set out in Clause 
C will be considered on their merits, subject to other relevant 
policies, and with particular regard to the following: 
1. The demonstration of compliance in the requirements of policies 
CD1, PS1, PN1 and CH1 associated with the likelihood of the effect 
of the grant of a licence for later or earlier hours on crime and 
disorder, public safety, public nuisance and the protection of children 
from harm. 
2. If the application is located within a Special Consideration Zone 
they have demonstrated that they have taken account of the 
issues identified in that area and provided adequate mitigation. 
3. Whether there is residential accommodation in the proximity of 
the premises that would likely be adversely affected by premises 
being open or carrying out operations at the hours proposed. 
4. The proposed hours of the licensable activities and when 
customers will be permitted to remain on the premises. 
5. The proposed hours when any music, including incidental music, 
will be played. 
6. The hours when customers will be allowed to take food or drink 
outside the premises or be within open areas which form part of the 
premises. 
7. The existing hours of licensable activities and the past operation 
of the premises (if any) and hours of licensable premises in the 
vicinity. 
8. Whether customers and staff have adequate access to public 
transport when arriving at and leaving the premises, especially at 
night. 
9. The capacity of the premises. 
10. The type of use, recognising that some venues are more likely to 
impact the licensing objectives than others; for example, pubs 
and bars are higher risk than theatres, cinemas and other cultural 
and sporting venues due to the nature of the operation. 
11. The Licensing Authority will take into account the active 
measures proposed for a ‘winding down’ period including 
arrangements for people to be collected from the premises to travel 
home safely. 

page 32



12. Conditions on hours may be attached that require that the supply 
of alcohol for consumption on the premises ceases a suitable period 
of time before customers are required to leave the premises. 
13. The council, acting as the Licensing Authority, may reduce hours 
if, after review, it is necessary to impose conditions specifying 
shorter hours in order to promote the licensing objectives. 
14. Specific days for non-standard hours should be identified and 
justified as part of the application to allow responsible authorities 
and interested parties to evaluate the impact that these licensable 
activities may have, and to plan accordingly. The consideration of 
applications for later hours for Bank Holiday Mondays will take into 
account that later hours are generally granted for preceding 
Sundays and that the next day is a working day. Non-specific days 
are expected to be covered by Temporary Event Notices or variation 
applications. 
 
C. For the purpose of Clauses A and B above, the Core Hours for 
applications for each premises use type as defined within this policy 
are: 
1. Casinos: Up to 24 hours a day whilst casino gaming is permitted 
by a premises licence under the Gambling Act 2005.  
2. Cinemas, Cultural Venues and Live Sporting Premises: 
Monday to Sunday: 9am to 12am 
3. Hotels: Monday to Thursday: 9am to 11.30pm. Friday and 
Saturday: 9am to 12am. Sunday: 9am to 10.30pm. Sundays 
immediately prior to a bank holiday: 9am to 12am. For the sale of 
alcohol to guests for consumption in hotel/guest rooms only: 
Anytime up to 24 hours.  
4. Off licences: Monday to Saturday: 8am to 11pm. Sunday: 9am to 
10.30pm.  
5. Outdoor Spaces: Monday to Thursday: 9am to 11.30pm. Friday 
and Saturday: 9am to 12am. Sunday: 9am to 10.30pm. Sundays 
immediately prior to a bank holiday: 9am to 12am.  
6. Pubs and bars, Fast Food and Music and Dance venues: 
Monday to Thursday: 10am to 11.30pm. Friday and Saturday: 10am 
to 12am. Sunday: 9am to 10.30pm. Sundays immediately prior to a 
bank holiday: 12pm to 12am.  
7. Qualifying Clubs: Monday to Thursday: 9am to 12am.. Friday 
and Saturday: 9am to 12am. Sunday: 9am to 10.30pm. Sundays 
immediately prior to a bank holiday: 9am to 12am.  
8. Restaurants: Monday to Thursday: 9am to 11.30pm. Friday and 
Saturday: 9am to 12am. Sunday: 9am to 10.30pm. Sundays 
immediately prior to a bank holiday: 9am to 12am.  
9. Sexual Entertainment Venues and Sex Cinemas: Monday to 
Thursday: 9am to 11.30pm. Friday and Saturday: 9am to 12am. 
Sunday: 9am to 10.30pm. Sundays immediately prior to a bank 
holiday: 9am to 12am.  
D. Core hours are when customers are permitted to be on the 
premises and therefore the maximum opening hours permitted will 
be to the same start and terminal hours for each of the days where 
licensable activity is permitted.  

E. For the purposes of this policy, ‘premises uses’ are defined within 
the relevant premises use policies within this statement. 

Policy FFP1 Applies A. Applications outside the West End Cumulative Zones will 
generally be granted subject to: 
1. The application meeting the requirements of policies CD1, PS1, 

page 33



PN1 and CH1. 
2. The hours for licensable activities are within the council’s Core 
Hours Policy HRS1. 
3. The operation of any delivery services for alcohol and/or latenight 
refreshment meeting the council’s Ancillary Delivery of Alcohol 
and/or Late-Night Refreshment Policy DEL1. 
4. The applicant has taken account of the Special Consideration 
Zones Policy SCZ1 if the premises are located within a designated 
zone. 
5. The application and operation of the venue meet the definition of 
a fast food premises in Clause D. 
B. It is the Licensing Authority’s policy to refuse applications within 
the West End Cumulative Impact Zone other than: 
1. Applications to vary the existing licence hours within the council’s 
Core Hours Policy HRS1, and/or, 
2. Applications that seek to vary the existing licence so as to reduce 
the overall capacity of the premises. 
C. The applications referred to in Clause B1 and B2 will generally be 
granted subject to: 
1. The application meeting the requirements of policies CD1, PS1, 
PN1 and CH1. 
2. The operation of any delivery services for alcohol and/or latenight 
refreshment meeting the council’s Ancillary Delivery of Alcohol 
and/or Late-Night Refreshment Policy DEL1. 
3. The application and operation of the venue continuing to meet the 
definition of a Fast Food Premises in Clause D. 
D. For the purposes of this policy a Fast Food Premises is defined 
as: 
1. A premises that provides late night refreshment, either by way of 
fast food over a counter, via a self-seating basis or take away for 
immediate consumption. 
2. Food and drink are: 
a. Available on the premises for self-selection. 
b. Prepared on the premises. 
c. Cooked or produced off the premises but brought to that premises 
in advance of its sale to customers. 
3. The food and drink are provided in pre-sealed or open disposable  
packaging which is intended for immediate consumption. 
4. A fast-food premises can provide a delivery service as part of its  
operation, however that service must be ancillary to the main 
function of the premises as defined within sub-clauses D,1 to D,3 
above. 

 

page 34



4.         Equality Implications 
 

The Council in its capacity as Licensing Authority has a duty to have regard to  
its public sector equality duty under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. In  
summary, section 149 provides that a Public Authority must, in the exercise of  
its functions, have due regard to the need to:  

 
(a) eliminate discrimination harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that 
is prohibited by or under this Act;  
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; and  
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristics and persons who do not share it.  

Section 149 (7) of the Equality Act 2010 defines the relevant protected characteristics as 
age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, and sexual orientation. 

 
 
 

page 35



 
5. Appendices 

 

Appendix 1 
 

Premises plans 

Appendix 2 
 

Applicant supporting documents  

Appendix 3 
 

Premises history 
 

Appendix 4 
 

Proposed conditions 

Appendix 5 Residential map and list of premises in the vicinity 
 

 

Report author: Angela Lynch 
Senior Licensing Officer 

Contact: Telephone: 0207 641 6500 
Email: aseaward@westminster.gov.uk 
 

 

If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect one of the background 
papers please contact the report author. 
 

Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 
 

1 Licensing Act 2003 N/A 
 

2 City of Westminster Statement of Licensing  
Policy  

01 October 2021 

3 Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of  
the Licensing Act 2003  

December 2022 

4 Licensing Authority representation 5 January 2023 

5 Environmental Health Service representation 6 January 2023 

6 Metropolitan Police Service 5 January 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 36



Premises Plans                                  Appendix 1 
 
 

 

page 37



 
Applicant Supporting Documents                                            Appendix 2 

 
There are no supporting documents from the applicant. 
 

page 38



 
Premises History                                  Appendix 3 

 
Temporary Event Notice History 
 

Application Details of 
Application 

Date Determined Decision 

22/11929/LITENN Temporary Event 
Notice 

20.12.2022 Event allowed to 
proceed 

22/11906/LITENN Temporary Event 
Notice 

21.12.2022 Event allowed to 
proceed 

22/11813/LITENN Temporary Event 
Notice 

13.12.2022 Event allowed to 
proceed 

page 39



 
 

Appendix 4 
 
CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant 
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or 
proposed as necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority 
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing 
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and 
have not necessarily been agreed 
 
Mandatory Conditions 
 
None 
 
Conditions consistent with the operating schedule 
 
1. Notices shall be prominently displayed at each exit from the premises asking patrons to 

be considerate to neighbours when leaving. 
 

2. CCTV will be operational at all times while the premises remain open to the public and 
all images captured be recorded and stored on site for a minimum period of 31 days.  
Copies of CCTV recordings will be made available to the Police and/or the Licensing 
Authority on reasonable request. 

 
The Metropolitan Police Service proposes an alternative wording to condition 2 as 
follows:  
 
2. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the 

minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit 
points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light 
condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for 
licensable activities and during all times when customers remain on the premises and 
will include the external area immediately outside the premises entrance. All recordings 
shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of 
recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised 
officer throughout the entire 31-day period.  

 
3. At least one member of staff on duty whilst the licence is being used shall be trained in 

the requirements of the Licensing Act in terms of the licensing objectives, offences 
committed under the Act and conditions of the Premises Licence. 

 
 

page 40



4. Policies and procedures shall be put in place for the collection of street litter generated 
by the premises and such policies shall be implemented by staff whenever the premises 
are being used under the terms of this licence. 

 
5. An incident book will be maintained by the premises that details incidents of note that 

occur in the premises. This shall include crimes, items seized, defects in the CCTV 
system, refused admission, disorder and ejection as a minimum. The incident book shall 
be kept on the premises and be available for inspection at all times the premises is 
open. 
 

The Metropolitan Police Service proposes an alternative wording to condition 5 as 
follows: 
  
5.  An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an 

authorised officer of the City Council or the Police. It must be completed within 24 hours 
of the incident and will record the following:  
(a) all crimes reported to the venue  
(b) all ejections of patrons  
(c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder  
(d) any incidents of disorder  
(e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons  
(f) any faults in the CCTV system, searching equipment or scanning equipment  
(g) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 
 

6. From 9pm whenever the venue is operational on Fridays and Saturdays there will be 1 
licensed door supervisor on duty on the premises. They will correctly display their SIA 
licence which will be visible whilst on duty. 

 
Conditions proposed by the Metropolitan Police Service. 
 
7.  A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV 

system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff 
member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent 
CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested. 

 
Conditions proposed by the Environmental Health Service. 
 
8. There shall be no consumption of late night refreshment on the premises.  
 
9. No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, shall 

emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the 
premises which gives rise to a nuisance. 

 
10. During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure sufficient 

measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or accumulating from 
customers in the area immediately outside the premises, and that this area shall be 
swept and or washed, and litter and sweepings collected and stored in accordance with 
the approved refuse storage arrangements by close of business. 

 
11. No deliveries to the premises shall take place between (23.00) and (08.00) hours on the 

following day.  
 
12. No deliveries from the premises, either by the licensee or a third party shall take place 

between (23:00) and (08:00) hours on the following day. 
 
13. All waste shall be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than 30 

minutes before the scheduled collection times.  

page 41



 
14. No waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, removed from or 

placed in outside areas between (23.00) hours and (08.00) hours on the following day. 
 
15.  No fumes, steam or odours shall be emitted from the licensed premises so as to cause a 

nuisance to any persons living or carrying on business in the area where the premises 
are situated. 

 
16. Delivery drivers shall be given clear, written instructions to use their vehicles in a 

responsible manner so as not to cause a nuisance to any residents or generally outside 
the license premises; not to leave engines running when the vehicles are parked; and 
not to obstruct the highway. 

 
 

 

page 42



 
Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity                                        Appendix 5 
 

 
 
Resident Count 31 
 

 
 

Licensed premises with 75 metres of 33 Haymarket, London, SW1Y 4HA 
 

Licence Number Trading Name Address Premises Type Time Period 

20/07366/LIPCH 
Aberdeen 
Steak House 

21-22 
Coventry 
Street London 
W1D 7AE Restaurant 

Sunday; 10:00 
- 00:00 | 
Monday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 01:00 | 
Sundays 
before Bank 
Holidays; 
10:00 - 01:00 

22/04106/LIPDPS Tiger Tiger 

Haymarket 
House 28-29 
Haymarket 
London SW1Y 
4SP 

Night clubs and 
discos 

Sunday; 09:00 
- 00:30 | 
Monday to 
Saturday; 
09:00 - 03:30 

17/02769/LIPDPS 
The Comedy 
Store 

Ground Floor 
Right 
Haymarket 
House 1A Theatre 

Sunday; 09:00 
- 01:00 | 
Monday to 
Saturday; 

page 43



Oxendon 
Street London 
SW1Y 4EE 

09:00 - 05:00 

20/02193/LIPRW 
Happy Bar & 
Grill 

25-29 
Coventry 
Street London 
W1D 7AG Restaurant 

Sunday; 12:00 
- 00:30 | 
Monday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 01:30 | 
Sundays 
before Bank 
Holidays; 
12:00 - 01:00 

15/04802/LIPDPS Caffe Concerto 

45 Haymarket 
London SW1Y 
4SE Cafe 

Monday to 
Sunday; 08:00 
- 23:30 

21/04813/LIPDPS Comedy 

Basement To 
Second Floor 
7 Oxendon 
Street London 
SW1Y 4EE 

Night clubs and 
discos 

Sunday; 07:00 
- 00:30 | 
Sunday; 07:00 
- 22:30 | 
Monday to 
Thursday; 
07:00 - 23:30 | 
Monday to 
Saturday; 
07:00 - 02:30 | 
Friday to 
Saturday; 
07:00 - 00:00 | 
Sundays 
before Bank 
Holidays; 
07:00 - 00:00 

23/00049/LIPVM Hard Rock Cafe 

Criterion 
Building 225-
229 Piccadilly 
London W1J 
9HR Not Recorded 

Friday to 
Saturday; 
07:00 - 02:30 | 
Sunday to 
Thursday; 
07:00 - 01:30 

17/13227/LIPDPS 1 

St James's 
Market 
London Office 

Saturday to 
Sunday; 00:00 
- 00:00 

16/14122/LIPN Ikoyi 

St James's 
Market 
London Restaurant 

Sunday; 12:00 
- 23:00 | 
Monday to 
Thursday; 
10:00 - 00:00 | 
Friday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 00:30 

21/10397/LIPDPS Pizza Express 

26 Haymarket 
London SW1Y 
4SP Restaurant 

Sunday; 12:00 
- 00:00 | 
Monday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 00:30 

20/07347/LIPCHT Jumak39 

39 Panton 
Street London 
SW1Y 4EA Restaurant 

Sunday; 12:00 
- 00:00 | 
Monday to 

page 44



Saturday; 
10:00 - 00:30 

21/05711/LIPN Layalina 

32 Coventry 
Street London 
W1D 6BR Restaurant 

Monday to 
Sunday; 00:00 
- 00:00 

21/06624/LIPN 
Sky Bar   
Lounge 

Trocadero 13 
Coventry 
Street London 
W1D 7DH Restaurant 

Monday to 
Sunday; 00:00 
- 00:00 

18/00656/LIPN 

Trocadero 
Hotel/Sky Bar & 
Restaurant 

Trocadero 13 
Coventry 
Street London 
W1D 7DH 

Hotel, 3 star or 
under 

Monday to 
Sunday; 00:00 
- 00:00 

17/08106/LIPN 
Unit 4 - Happy 
Bar And Grill 

Trocadero 13 
Coventry 
Street London 
W1D 7DH Restaurant 

Sunday; 08:00 
- 22:30 | 
Monday to 
Thursday; 
08:00 - 23:30 | 
Friday to 
Saturday; 
08:00 - 00:00 

22/00403/LIPDPS 
Picturehouse 
Central 

Trocadero 13 
Coventry 
Street London 
W1D 7DH Cinema 

Monday to 
Sunday; 00:00 
- 23:59 

20/07563/LIPDPS Five Guys 

Trocadero 13 
Coventry 
Street London 
W1D 7DH Restaurant 

Sunday; 10:00 
- 22:30 | 
Monday to 
Thursday; 
10:00 - 23:30 | 
Friday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 00:00 

22/02946/LIPDPS Tasting Italy 

Ground Floor 
To Second 
Floor 38 
Panton Street 
London SW1Y 
4EA Restaurant 

Monday to 
Sunday; 12:00 
- 00:00 

22/11749/LIPDPS 
Prince Of 
Wales Theatre 

31 Coventry 
Street London 
W1D 6AS Theatre 

Monday to 
Sunday; 09:00 
- 00:00 

21/00632/LIPN 
(Shadow 
Licence) 

52 Haymarket 
London SW1Y 
4RP 

Premises 
Licence - 
Shadow Licence 

Sunday; 07:00 
- 23:30 | 
Monday to 
Saturday; 
07:00 - 01:00 

21/09831/LIPVM Not Recorded 

52 Haymarket 
London SW1Y 
4RP Restaurant 

Monday; 
07:00 - 01:00 | 
Tuesday; 
07:00 - 01:00 | 
Wednesday; 
07:00 - 01:00 | 
Thursday; 
07:00 - 01:00 | 
Friday; 07:00 - 

page 45



01:00 | 
Sunday; 07:00 
- 23:30 

10/07825/LIPD 
Woodlands 
Restaurant 

Basement And 
Ground Floor 
37 Panton 
Street London 
SW1Y 4EA Restaurant 

Sunday; 12:00 
- 00:00 | 
Monday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 00:30 

 

page 46



 

             
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item No: 
 

 

   

Licensing Ref No:  
  

22/11955/LIREVP 
 

   

 
Date: 

 

 
23 February 2023 

   

Classification: 
  

For General Release 
 

   

 
Title of Report: 

 

 
Simmons 
11 Woodstock Street 
London 
W1C 2AE 

   

 
Report of: 

 

 
Director of Public Protection and Licensing 

   

 
Policy context: 

 

 
City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy 

   

 
Financial summary: 

 

  
None 
 

   

 
Report Author: 

 

 
Emanuela Meloyan 
Senior Licensing Officer 

   

 
Contact Details: 

 

 
Telephone: 0207 641 6500 
E-mail: emeloyan@westminster.gov.uk 

Licensing Sub-
Committee Report 

page 47

Agenda Item 3.



 

APPLICATION DETAILS 
 

Application 
Type: 

A Review of Premises Licence application made under section 51 of the Licensing 
Act 2003 (“The Act”). 

 
Applicant: 

 
 

Date 
Application 
Received: 

 
15 December 2022 

Premises 
Name and  
Address: 

Simmons 
11 Woodstock Street 
London 
W1C 2AE 

Ward Name: 
 

West End Cumulative 
Impact Area: 

None 

Description of 
Premises: 

The Premises currently operates as a Public House. 
 

Preliminary 
Note: 

None 

 
2.   SUMMARY OF APPLICATION 
 
2.1 An application submitted by two local residents and supported by the Licensing Authority for a 

Review of the Premises Licence for Simmons 11 Woodstock Street, London, W1C 2AE (“The 
Premises”) was received on 15 December 2022 on the grounds of the Prevention of Public 
Nuisance.   A full copy of the application can be found at Annex 1. 

 
  2.2   Home Office Guidance issued under section 182 of the  Act on page 94 (para 11.2 refers) states 

that “at any stage following the grant of a premises licence, a responsible authority, such as the 
Police or the Environmental Health Service, or any other person who can seek a review, may 
ask the Licensing Authority to review the premises licence because of a matter arising at the 
premises in connection with any of the four licensing objectives”. 

 
2.3    As such, in accordance with section 52(2) of the  Act, the Licensing Authority must hold a 

hearing to consider the application and any relevant representations. The requirement to hold a 
hearing is mandatory in nature. 

 
2.4    The Premises currently benefits from a Premises Licence under reference number 
22/11866/LIPVM that permits the following licensable activities:  

   
Late Night Refreshment 
 

   Monday to Sunday:                             23:00 to 00:30  
              Non-standard Timings:                          New Year's Eve until 01:30 
 

Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 

  Monday to Saturday:                             10:00 to 00:00  
  Sunday:                                         12:00 to 23:30  
  Sundays before Bank Holidays:      12:00 to 00:00  
              Non-standard Timings:                            New Year's Eve until 01:30 

 
2.5      Further documents mainly in the form of email correspondence that were submitted as part of 

the review application can be found at Annex 1 (Appendix 1-11) 
 
2.6  On submission of this application, the Applicant provided an in-depth description of the issues 

relating to the Premises which stated the following commentary: 
  
  
 

page 48



“The aim of this review is to ensure that music noise and vibrations are inaudible in residents’ 
flats. Simmons Bar have opened a new venue next door and below to residential premises, in 
a building immediately adjacent to our own (both terraced houses) causing severe noise 
nuisance to residents due to the high volume of music being played. This is an issue both 
during daytime and resting hours for residents at , 
which we represent. We are also aware that residents at have been 

2.7 

2.8 

impacted. The business have asked and have been granted Temporary Event Notices to 3am 
for every single week from now until end of the year. WCC noise officers have visited our 
residential premises a number of times, as per the timeline below, and have repeatedly 
witnessed statutory nuisance under Environmental Protection Act 1990 and asked the 
business to reduce their noise emissions. 

A meeting was facilitated by  and WCC officers to try and resolve the situation 
amicably, by setting noise levels to be inaudible from within our premises, but that did not 
resolve the issue as the business considered WCC requirements not commercially viable 
(despite it having bee established that a statutory nuisance exists). We understand that a 
noise abatement notice was issued on Nov 28th, but despite that the nuisance has continued 
as previously reported. 

The business is currently only licensed to serve alcohol and late night refreshment, although 
they do offer and advertise regulated entertainment (on their website, fliers, window signs, 
etc.). 

We are aware that recorded music is deregulated in certain circumstances and so the only 
way we can achieve enforceable conditions on the licence to cease the nuisance and prevent 
its reoccurrence is by way of a licence review”. 

Additional submissions received from the Applicant can be found at Annex 2.  

At the time of producing this report the Premises Licence Holder has yet to submit 
his submissions. However, any late written submissions will be presented to the Licensing 
Sub-Committee and all relevant parties prior to the hearing taking place. 

3. REPRESENTATIONS:

3.1 The application has also received a representation in support of the Review from the 
Environmental Health Service on the 11 January 2023 on the grounds of Prevention of Public 
Nuisance and can be found at Annex 3. 

3.2 The application has also received representations in support of the Review from interested 
parties on the grounds of public nuisance and can be found at Annex 4.  

4. OPTIONS:

4.1 The Applicant is seeking Revocation of the Premises Licence due to the weight  of evidence 
that has been submitted and  the Premises failure to promote the licensing objectives, 
namely:- 
1) The potential for crime and disorder
2) The potential for public nuisance

The Applicant believes that a nightclub style of operation is not appropriate for this location. 

4.2 The Authority under section 52 (4) of the Act must, having regard to the application and the 
representations, take such steps (if any), as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the 

page 49



 

licensing objectives.  The steps are: 
 
(a) to modify the conditions of the licence; 
(b) to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence; 
(c) to remove the designated premises supervisor; 
(d) to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; 
(e) to revoke the licence; 

 
and for this purpose the conditions of the licence are modified if any of them is altered or 
omitted or any new condition added. 

 
4.3 In accordance with section 52(6) of the Act, if the Authority takes measures to modify 

conditions or exclude licensable activities from the licence, it may stipulate that the 
modification or exclusion is to have effect for only such period (not exceeding three months) 
as it may specify. 

 
4.4 The licensing authority’s determination of this application does not have effect until the 21 day 

appeal period has expired or if the decision is appealed the date the appeal is determined and 
/ or disposed of. 

 
 
5. LICENSING ACT 2003 APPLICATIONS AND APPEAL HISTORY 
 
 

List of Appendices: Annex 1 – Application for Review  

• Appendix 1 – Full Premises Licence 

• Appendix 2 – 11-11-2022 

• Appendix 3 – 15-11-2022 

• Appendix 4 – 15-11-2022_b 

• Appendix 5 – 16-11-2022 

• Appendix 6 – 23-11-2022_a 

• Appendix 7 – 23-11-2022_b 

• Appendix 8 – 23-11-2022_c 

• Appendix 9 – 23-11-2022_d 

• Appendix 10 – 29-11-2022_a 

• Appendix 11 - 29-11-2022_b 
Annex 2 – Applicant’s further submissions  
Annex 3 – Environmental Health submission 
Annex 4 – Interested Parties representation  
Annex 5 – Licence History/Appeal History 
Annex 6 – Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity  

 
Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 
 

• Licensing Act 2003 

• City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy (October 2021) 

• Revised Home Office Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (December 2022) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 50



 

Annex 1 
Application for a Review and Supporting Documents from the Applicant 

 

 
 
 
 

page 51



 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

page 52



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 53



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 54



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 55



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 56



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 57



 

 
 
 
 
 

 

page 58



 

 

page 59



 

 
 

page 60



 

 

 

page 61



 

Appendix 1 – Full Premises Licence 
 
 

 
 
 
 

page 62



 

 
 
 

page 63



 

 
 
 
 
 

page 64



 

 

page 65



 
page 66



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 67



 
page 68



 
page 69



 

  

page 70



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 71



 

 
 
 
 
 

page 72



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 73



 

 
Appendix 2 – 11-11-2022 

 

 
 
                                       

page 74



 

Appendix 3 – 15-11-2022 

 
 
 
 
 

page 75



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 76



 

Appendix 4 – 15-11-2022_b 
 

 
 
 

 
 

page 77



 

Appendix 5 – 16-11-2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 78



 

Appendix 6 – 23-11-2022_a 

 

page 79



 

 
 

page 80



 

Appendix 7 – 23-11-2022_b 
 

 
 

page 81



 

Appendix 8 – 23-11-2022_c 

 
 

page 82



 

Appendix 9 – 23-11-2022_d 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 83



 

Appendix 10 – 29-11-2022_a 

 
 
 

page 84



 

Appendix 11 – 29-11-2022_b 

 
 

 
 
 
 

page 85



 

Annex 2 
Applicant Further Submissions 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 86



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 87



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 88



 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

page 89



 

 

 

page 90



 

 

page 91



 

 
 
 

page 92



 

 
 
 

page 93



 

 
 
 

page 94



 

 
 
 

page 95



 

 
 
 

page 96



 

 
 
 

page 97



 

 
 
 

page 98



 

 
 
 
 

page 99



 

 
 
 

 

page 100



 

 
Annex 3 

Environmental Health Service representation in support of review 
 

 
CITY OF WESTMINSTER MEMORANDUM 
 

 
TO  Licensing Officer 
 
REFERENCE  22/11955/LIREVP 
 

 

1. FROM  EH Consultation Team 
REFERENCE   
BEING DEALT WITH BY Ian Watson 
TELEPHONE   
DATE  11th January 2023 
 

The Licensing Act 2003 
 
Re: Simmons, 11 Woodstock Street, W1 
 
I refer to the application for review of the Premises Licence. 
 
The review application has been submitted by local residents due to the premises not supporting the 
licensing objective of Prevention of Public Nuisance. 
 
The premises operate under licence number 22/11866/LIPVM. 
 
The applicant has stated that despite working with the premises noise nuisance, from the provision of 
musical amplified entertainment, is still being experienced from the premises. 
Therefore, under section 177A enforceable conditions are required to control live and recorded music 
that may be otherwise deregulated under the provisions of the Live Music Act 2012 (as amended 
2015). 
 
A check on the premises file shows numerous complaints from residents regarding loud music from 
amplified entertainment. These complaints have been verified following visits by EHO’s/City 
Inspectors and on the 28th November 2022 a section 80 noise abatement notice was served under the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 due to statutory nuisance being witnessed. 
 
Environmental Health as a responsible authority supports this review and will submit a full list of 
complaints, visits and outcomes along with the noise abatement notice prior to the sub-committee 
hearing in line with the timescales recorded under the review. 
 
Should you wish to discuss the matter further please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
 
Ian Watson 
Senior Practitioner Environmental Health (Licensing) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 101



 

 
Noise Limiter Setting Report 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 102



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 103



 

 
 

Abatement Notice 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 104



 

 
 
 
 
 

page 105



 

 
Statement of Witness – Paul Green 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 106



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 107



 

  
Environmental Health – Cover Letter 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 108



 

 
Environmental Health to Mr Campbell 

 

 

page 109



 

Annex 4 
Interested Parties representation in support of the review plus supplementary documentation 

 
 

Comments received electronically via PublicAccess: 
 

• 
Received: 11 Jan 2023 by  
SUPPORT  
 
 
I support the licence review application and the imposition of additional conditions as 
appropriate to mitigate the noise disturbance emanating from the bar operations at the 
premises, on the grounds that the premises are located within a residential building. 
 
Further submissions received: 11 Jan 2023 
 
Good afternoon. 
 
I refer to the above licence review application. I am a resident at , 

 in question. I have been a resident since 22 November 2022. To 
my knowledge, other than Simmons Bar, the rest of the premises within the building are 
residential in nature. 
 
I have read the related application and supporting documents and would like to lend my full 
support to it. The introduction section on page 6 of the application form sums up perfectly the 
character of the neighbourhood and the negative impact that the noise emission from 
Simmons Bar has had on the living conditions of affected residents. The disturbance comes 
not just from the audible emission of music which can be heard within my premises (including 
my bedroom) to the extent that I could, on occasion, distinctly identify the songs being played, 
but also from antisocial behaviour of their patrons during busy hours, including smoking and 
disposal of cigarette butts at the building entrance. This obviously has adverse health 
consequences for the residents. 
 
I note from the application materials that sound measurements were taken on 22 November 
2022 and the noise levels which were deemed acceptable by the  

 and the WCC, were considered to be “not commercially viable” by Simmons Bar. I was 
not present at that occasion, and so cannot speak to the events and conversations that had 
transpired, but I would like to add that the “commercial viability” of Simmons Bar (which in any 
case appears to be their unilateral and subjective assessment not backed up by any evidence 
as to loss of business revenue) should not take precedence over the rights of the residents to 
quiet enjoyment of their homes. After all, Simmons Bar would have known, or ought to have 
known, that the premises are situated directly , and it is regrettable that 
they appear not to have taken any measures to mitigate the negative externalities of their 
business activities suffered by the residents. In any case, the “commercial viability” of 
Simmons Bar should definitely not trump the law, and if it is indeed the case that the noise 
levels emanating from their premises have breached any statutory limit (which the attached 
email correspondence seems to suggest was the view of the attending officers), swift 
enforcement action should be taken to prevent a recurrence of the issue.        
 
I would implore the WCC to review the application materials and submissions carefully and 
take our concerns seriously. In my opinion, the proposed conditions are necessary, 
appropriate and proportionate to all affected parties. I am sure an amicable resolution would 
have been the preference of the applicants, and it is unfortunate that the affected residents 
have had to expend precious time and resources to compel the bar operators to behave in a 
more considerate and neighbourly manner.    

 
Best regards, 

page 110



 

 

 

page 111



 

 
 
 
 

 

page 112



 

Comments received via other means: 
 

•   
Received: 12 Jan 2023 - SUPPORT  
 
I am the current .  I support the demands of my 
neighbours as expressed in their licence review request regarding Simmons Bar, 11 
Woodstock Street.   
 
Since its opening, the bar has attracted large crowds late into the night, affecting the character 
and safety of our street.  The loud music from the venue can be distinctly heard within our 
building in the stairwell and, although less loudly, within my flat at the top of the building. 
 
I support the demands of the licence review to limit any current and future nuisance caused by 
said business. 

 

•  
, 

Received: 10 Jan 2023 - SUPPORT 
 

Dear Licencing Officers, 
 
My name , I am one of the directors of  the company 
owning the  
 
I am writing in support of the demands of the residents as expressed in their licence review 
request against Simmons Bar, 11 Woodstock Street. 
 
The residents of the building have contacted us about the nuisance caused by the disco bar 
since its very opening in November. The noise generated within the commercial premises 
(loud music) and disturbance created (including antisocial behaviour, and late night 
disturbance) affects the enjoyment of the flats by the residents. 
A member of our company also personally witnessed the nuisance, and we completely 
endorse the residents' concerns and complaints. 
 
The premises at 11 Woodstock St, previously a pub (more recently a bistro) never caused any 
similar issues. The business has now been converted into a cocktail bar which advertise 
themselves as a venue for drinks, music and dance, with the front windows displaying a neon 
sign with the word “disco”. It was reported to us that statutory nuisance (loud music) was 
witnessed by the Noise Team of Westminster City Council even outside deregulated 
entertainment hours, and we also witnessed the same. 
 
The nuisance created, if further protracted, will have a direct impact on the value of our 
property and our rental income.Having carried out works in our own building in the past few 
years, and being very much aware of the required permits, accurate noise measurements and 
reports for all mechanical equipment, compliance with regulations and so on, I am personally 
very surprised a disco bar managed to open within a context of residential terraced buildings 
within the existing licence and without carrying out accurate studies and site measurements to 
assess the impact and ensure no disturbance would be generated, for the respect of all 
neighbours (residents and businesses) and as required by their licence. 
 
Based on the above considerations, we ask the Council to proceed with the licence restrictions 
as outlined in the residents review request. 
 
Best regards, 

 
 
 

page 113



 

Annex 5  
Licence & Appeal History 

 
Licensing Act 2003 History 

 
Application 

 
Details of Application 

 
Date Determined 

 
Decision 

15/00580/LIPN New premises licence application 24.02.2015 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

15/05723/LIPDPS Premises Licence - Vary DPS 29.07.2015 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

16/00518/LIPDPS Premises Licence - Vary DPS 31.01.2016 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

16/04060/LIPVM Minor Variation - To alter the layout 
of the premises and to amend 
condition 11 with respect to 
capacity 

16.05.2016 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

16/07937/LIPDPS Premises Licence - Vary DPS 11.08.2016 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

17/01145/LIPDPS Premises Licence - Vary DPS 17.02.2017 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

17/08015/LIPDPS Premises Licence - Vary DPS 02.08.2017 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

20/11692/LIPCH Change of Details - name and 
registered address of the premise 
licence holder Gastranome Limited 
 

15.12.2020 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

21/00436/LIPDPS Premises Licence - Vary DPS 03.02.2021 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

22/08769/LIPT Transfer of premises licence from 
Gastranome Limited to Simmons 
Covent Garden Limited 

30.09.2022 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

22/09392/LIPDPS Premises Licence - Vary DPS 18.10.2022 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

22/11866/LIPVM Minor Variation - To add conditions  
with respect to noise limiter agreed 
with Environmental Health Team 

05.01.2023 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

23/00367/LIPDPS Premises Licence - Vary DPS 06.02.2023 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

 
There is no appeal history 
 
Temporary Event Notice history for premises: 
 

TENS Application  Details of Application Date Determined Decision 

22/10361/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 04.11.2022 Notice Granted 

22/10362/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 04.11.2022 Notice Granted 

22/10356/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 04.11.2022 Notice Granted 

22/10357/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 04.11.2022 Notice Granted 

22/10360/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 04.11.2022 Notice Granted 

22/10840/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 15.11.2022 Notice Granted 

 

page 114



 

Annex 6 
Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity 

 

 
 

    Resident Count = 21 
 

Licensed premises within 75 metres of 11 Woodstock Street, London 
 

Licence Number  Trading Name   Address  Premises 
Type  

 Time Period 

20/07487/LIPCH Angus Steak 
House 

Woodstock House 
10 Woodstock Street 
London 
W1C 2AJ 

Restaurant Monday- Saturday – 
10:00 – 01:00 
Sunday 10:00 – 00:00 
 

18/02542/LIPDPS Spaghetti 
House 

12 Woodstock Street 
London 
W1C 2AF 

Restaurant Monday- Saturday – 
10:00 – 00:30 
Sunday 12:00 – 00:00 
 

19/11719/LIPN Eat Tokyo 14 Woodstock Street 
London 
W1C 2AG 

Restaurant Monday – Sunday – 
11:00 – 23:30 

19/04359/LIPVM Spread Eagle 
Public House 

Spread Eagle 
8 Woodstock Street 
London 
W1C 2AD 

Restaurant Monday – Thursday – 
09:00 – 00:30 
Friday – Saturday – 09:00 
– 01:30 

22/10265/LIPDPS Yo! Sushi @ 
Riverside 

15 Woodstock Street 
London 
W1C 2AQ 

Restaurant Monday- Saturday – 
12:00 – 23:00 
Sunday 12:00 – 22:30 
 

page 115



 

06/05976/WCCMAP Cafe Zeynah 341 Oxford Street 
London 
W1C 2JD 

Cafe Monday – Sunday – 
23:00 – 05:00 

21/14515/LIPV Jaks 43 South Molton Street 
London 
W1K 5RS 

Restaurant Monday – Sunday – 
07:00 – 03:30 

21/00575/LIPDPS Spook Space Basement And Ground 
Floor 
42 South Molton Street 
London 
W1K 5RR 

Park/Open 
Space 

Monday – Sunday – 
07:00 – 22:00 

21/05430/LIPRW  Caffe Concerto Basement And Ground 
Floor 
38 - 39 South Molton 
Street 
London 
W1K 5RL 

Cafe Monday – Thursday – 
07:00 – 23:30 
Friday – Saturday – 07:00 
– 00:00 – Sunday – 07:00 
– 23:30 

16/09029/LIPDPS Radisson Blu 
Edwardian 
Berkshire Hotel 

Ground Floor Right 
350 Oxford Street 
London 
W1C 1BY 

Hotel Monday – Sunday – 
00:00 – 00:00 

16/14245/LIPDPS  Chisou  Ground Floor 
22 Woodstock Street 
London 
W1C 2AP 

Restaurant Monday- Saturday – 
10:00 – 01:30 
Sunday 10:00 – 00:00 
 

21/13910/LIPCH Cube 4 Blenheim Street 
London 
W1S 1LB 

Restaurant Monday- Saturday – 
12:00 – 00:30 
Sunday 12:00 – 23:00 
 

06/05911/WCCMAP Il Pizzaiolo 
Restaurant 

3 Blenheim Street 
London 
W1S 1LA 

Restaurant Monday- Saturday – 
10:00 – 00:30 
Sunday 12:00 – 00:00 
 

 

page 116


	Agenda
	1. Basement and Ground Floor, 52 Queensway, W2 3RY
	2. Wok and Fire, 33 Haymarket, SW1Y 4HA
	3. Simmons, 11 Woodstock Street, W1C 2AE



